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Board of School Directors
Pine Grove Area School District
Pine Grove, Pennsylvania

We have performed the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements, for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance) of the Pine Grove Area School District for the year ended June 30, 2016.
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles and Audit Requirements, for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) indicates
that the auditee is responsible for ensuring appropriate submission of the audit reports to
appropriate government officials. ~

The reporting packages must be submitted no later than 30 days after you receive our Single
Audit Report but no fater than nine months after the year end (March 31, 201 7). This report
package, since past the due date, should be filed as soon as possible.

The Single Audit was done to fulfill the requirements of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements, for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). It entailed: (1) an audit of the
general purpose financial statements and our opinion thereon; (2) an examination of the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and our opinion thereon; (3) a review of the
internal control structure based solely on the understanding obtained as part of the audit of
the general purpose financial statements; (4) a review of the internal control structure made
as a part of the audit of the federal financial assistance programs; (5) a review of compliance
based- on an audit of the general purpose financial statements in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards; and (6) a review of compliance with laws and regulations
related to the federal financial assistance programs and our opinion thereon.

As part of our report, we have enclosed a management letter for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2016.

Titte 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles and Audit Requirements, for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) requires
that when filing the Single Audit Report and the Data Collection Form with the agencies listed
on Page 2, the District must enclose the appropriate number of reports as listed.

November 3, 2017
Pottsville, Pennsylvania
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of School Directors
Pine Grove Area School District
Pine Grove, Pennsylvania

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Pine Grove Area School
District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Pine Grove Area School District's basic financial statements as listed in the table

of contents. 7 _
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
 Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the asséssment
- of the risks of material misstatement of the financlal statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation and fair -
presentation ‘of the. financial .statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressmg an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control.” Accordingly, we express no such opinion: An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, .
as well as evaluating the overall presentaﬂon of the financial statements.

We beheve that the audit ewdence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to prov:de a basis for our
audit oplmons

Opinions

In our oplmon the fi nanmal statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial posmon of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Pine Grove Area School District, as of June 30, 20186,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matiters

Regquired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion on pages 10-23 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide

any assurance.

Ofher Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Pine Grove Area School District's basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regufations {CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is- the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Siuch information has been subjected to the auditing procedures apptled in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the. underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relatjon to the basic financial

staternents as a whole.

. The schedule of the District’s pr_oportionate share of the net pension liability and the schedufe of the
District's contributions have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Audmng Standards

In accordance with Government Audttmg Standards, we have also |ssued our report dated November 3,
2017, on our consideration of the Pine Grove Area School District's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal .-
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Pine Grove Area School
District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

November 3, 2017
Pottsville, Pennsylvania
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of School Directors
Pine Grove Area School District
Pine Grove, Pennsylvania

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each majorfund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Pine Grove Area School District, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Pine Grove Area School District's basic financial statements and have issued our

report thereon dated November 3, 2017.
Internal Control over Flnanma! Reporting
In pla'nning'and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Pine Grove

- Area Schoo! District's internai control over financial reporting (interal control) to determine the

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Pine Grove Area School District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Pine Grove Area School District’s internal control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned. functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,

or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. ‘

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal controt that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies.and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal
control, described .in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we
consider to be a material weakness. This material weakness is identified as finding 2016-01.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Pine Grove Area School District’s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of fi ndlngs and
questioned costs as items 2016-02, 2016-03 and 2016-04,

Pine Grove Area School District’s Response to Findings

The Pine Grove Area School District's response to the findings identified in our audit is described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Pine Grove Area School
District’'s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it,

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

November 3, 2017
Pot_tsville, Pennsylvania
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE

Board of School Directors
Pine Grove Area School District
Pine Grove, Pennsylvania

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Pine Grove Area School District's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supp!ementthat could have a direct and material
effect on each of the Pine Grove Area School! District’s major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2016. Pine Grove Area School District's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of audltor’s results section of the accompanylng schedule of findings and questioned

costs.
Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulatlons and the terms and )
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

.Auditor's Responsibility

- Our responsibility is to express an opmlon on compllance for each of the Pine Grove Area School
" District’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in-accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Pine
Grove Area School District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that dur audit provides a reasonable basis for our -o'pinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Pine

Grove Area School District’'s compliance.



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Pine Grove Area School District, complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Pine Grove Area School District is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Pine
. Grove Area School District’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
oplnlon on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Pine Grove Area School District’s internal controf over

compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operatlon of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncomphance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compllance yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compllance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compllance is solely-to descnbe the scope of
our testing of internal control aver compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other

purpose.

* November 3, 2017
Pottsville, Pennsylvania



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2016

{(Unaudited)

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended to provide a narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Pine Grove Area School District (the
“District”) for the year ended June 30, 2016. The District’s financial performance is discussed
and analyzed within the context of the financial statements and the disclosures that follow.
This discussion focuses on the District’s financial performance as a whole; readers should
review the basic financial statements and the notes to the financial statements for a better
understanding of the District as a whole.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total Net Position of the District decreased $1,250,133 in 2016 to {$8,961,018) at June 30,
2016. Net position of governmental activities decreased $1,282,242 or (16.21%) below 2015,
Net position of the business-type activity increased $32,109, or 11.17%, above 2015.

The District had $23,612,338 in expenses related to governmental activities in 2016; of these
expenses, $4,490,734 was offset by program-specific charges for services, grants or
contributions. General revenues (primarily taxes and state subsidies) of $17,840,835 were

adequate to provide for these programs.
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basis
financial statements. The District’s basin financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) govemmcnt—mde finanmal staternents, 2) fund financial statements, and 3)
notes to the financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The goVemmcnt-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These
statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accountlng The focus of these statements is

long—term

" The statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities
and deferred inflows and outflows of resources. Over time, increases or decreases in net
;posmon may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is

1mprov1ng or detenoratmg

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as
" the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e g., uncollected taxes and accrued vacation

and sick leave).



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2016 ,

(Unaudited)

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through
user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities include all of the
District’s instructional programs and support services except for its food service operation,
which is considered a business-type activity. '

The government-wide {inancial statements can be found of pages 23-24 of this report.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The focus of fund
financial statements is short-term. Fund financial statements are prepared using the modified
accrual basis of accounting, The District uses several different types of funds but the two most

significant types are the governmental and proprietary fund types,
" GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating

the Distn'ct’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the govemment—mde financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District’s
near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation
to facnlltate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

“The District maintains two individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
" expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the District’s maj or funds {General Fund and

Capltal PI‘OJ ect Fund).

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 25 through 34 of this
report. '

10



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2016

(Unaudited)

The District adopts an annual budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement for the
General Fund has been provided on page 30 of this report to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The District accounts for its food service operation in a proprietary fund, which report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30-32 of

this report,
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The District maintains fiduciary funds for private purpose trust and student activity funds. All of the
District’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of Net Position on page 34 of this
report as these activities cannot be used to finance District operations.

- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
" in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be

found on pages 36-52 of this report.
GENERAL F_UND'.BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The District prepares a budget each year for its General Fund according to Permsjlvama law, The
budget complied with-all apphcable. state laws and financial policies approved by the School Board of

Dlrectors

The Gcneral Fund’s approved budget for 2016 included revenue of $22,293,273 and expenditures and -
other financing uses of $22,558,194. Therg were no amendments made to the budget in 2016.

Actual revenues in 2016 were $22,323,300, exceeding bud'geted revenues of $22,293,273 by $30,027.
The favorable variance was attrlbutable primarily to an increase of $123,346 in state source revenues,
 offset slightly by a decrease of $40,416 in local source revenues and a decrease of $52 903 in federal

SGUI’CG revenues.,

Actual expendltures were less than the budgeted expenditures in 2016 by $231,887. The primary cause
for the favorable variance is an increase in instruction and operation of non-instructional services
expenditures of $98,571 and $142,796 respectlvely offset by a decrease in support services
expendltures of $473, 254 '

Other ﬁnancmg uses were $1,720,759 in 2016, less than the budgeted amount of $2, 418 534 by .

$697,775. $700,000 of the favorable variance is attributable to the district not utilizing the budgetary

contingency of $400,000 or the interfund transfer budgeted amount of $300,000, offset by $2,225 debt
service expenditures in excess of the budgeted amount of $1,718,534. :

11



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2016
(Unaudited)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The District’s condensed government-wide financial statements are presented comparatively

as follows:

Current and Other assets

Capital assets
Deferred Qutflows of
resources

Total Assets & Deferrcd
Qutflows of Resources

Current and cher liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Deferred Inflows of resources

Total Liabilities & Deferred
Inflows

- Net Position:

Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt

Restricted
- Committed
Unassigned

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities & Net
Position

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
GOVERNMENTAL

BUSINESS TYPE

$40,610,562

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITY TOTALS
63072016 6/302015 6/30/2016  6/30/2015 6/3072016  6/30/2015 -
$12,804347 $12,527,811 $1,035460 $356964  $13929.807 $12,884,775
27.000449 27,817,741 9,553 4,519 27,010,002 27,822,260

1,645,834 265,010 0 0 1,645,834 265,010
$41,540,630  $40,610,562 $1,045013  $361,483  $42,585643 $40,972,045
$4.182,492  $4,183,352 $708243  $59,611 $4.890,735  $4,242.963
46,127,544 43,477,195 0 0 46,127,544 43,477,795

511,071 947,650 17311 14,522 528,382 962,172
$50,821,107  $48,608,797 $725.554  $74,133  $51,546,661 $48,682,930
$12,795449  $11,108,741 $9.553  $4,519  $12,805002 $11,113,260

1,491,548 2,013,794 0 0 1,491,548 2,013,794
| 0 0 0 0 o 0

(23,567474) (21,120,770 300906 282,831  (23,257,568) (20,837,939)
(9280477)  (7,998,235) 319459 287350  (896L,018) (7,710,885)
$41,540,630 $1,045013  $361,483  $42,585.643  $40,972,045
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2016
(Unaudited)
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (IN 000°S)
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITY TOTALS
6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2016  6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

Revenues 5 ’
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services $63,849 $59,866 $477,115  $421,069 $540,964 $480,935

Operating Grants and 4,360,646 4,032,600 444011 461,448 4,804,657 4,494,048

Contributions )

Capital Grants and

Contributions 66,239 169,970 0 0 66,239 169,970

Taxes Levied for General 1 55 135 10,400,257 0 0 10271135 10,400,257

Purposes

Grants, Subsidies and

Other'Contr. 7,159,872 7,045,184 0 0 7,159,872 7,045,184

Transfers and Other 408,355 499,766 1,473 288 409,828 500,054
Total Revenues $22,330,096  $22,207,643 $921,126  $882,517 323,252,695  $23,090,448
Program Expenditures

Instruction ) $15,_032,286 $l3,528,457 $0 $0 $15,032,286 $13,528,457

Instructional Student 1,866,200 1,754,837 0 . 0 1,866,209 1,754,837

Support ‘ ‘ ,

Administrative & 2,430,826 2,307,273 0o 0 2,430,826 2,307,273

. Financial Support :

oo & Mainienance 4 996374 1,960,322 0 0 1,096,374 1,960,322

Pupil Transportation 1,303,390 1,166,275 0 0 1,303,390 1,166,275

Student Activities 631,297 524,273 0 0 631,297 524,273

Community Services 0 350 0 0 0 350

Interest on Long-Term o

Debt 351,956 423,024 0 . ¢ 151,956 423,024

Unallocated Depreciation ‘

Food services 0 0 890490 832,474 890,490 332474
Total Expenditures $23,612,338  $21,664,811 $890.490  $832,474 $24,502,828 $22,497,285
Change in Net Position (1,282,242) 542,832 32,109 50,331 (1,250,133) 593,163
Net Position, Beginning (7.998,235) 19,663,933 287,350 237,019 - (7,710,885) 19,900,952
Prior Period Adjustment 0 (28,205,000) 0 0 0 (28,205,000)
Net Position, Ending ($9,280,477)  ($7,998,235) $319,459 $£287,350 ($8,961,018) ($7,710,885)
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2016

(Unaudited)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The Net Position of the governmental activities decreased by $1,282,242 or 4.64% above
2015. The majority of the decrease was due to an increase in the District’s reportable Net
Pension Liability as of 6/30/16 as a result of the adoption of GASB Statement No, 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting Pensions in the prior year, as disclosed in Note 15 to
the financia! statements. Revenues increased approximately 0.86%, attributable primarily to
an increase in local tax collections. Expenditures increased approximately 2.97% in 2016
due to increases in instruction expenses. '

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITY

The Net Position of the District’s food service operation increased by $32,109 in 2016.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE FUNDS

GENERAL FUND (MAJOR)

" The following represents a summary of Actual General Fund revenue, by source, for the
years June 30, 2016 and 2015. :

2016 Amount 2015 Amount Increase {Decrease)

Local Sources. S 10,736,543 10,885,138 S {148,595)
State Sources 11,170,978 10,789,889 381,089
Federal Sources 415,779 457,301 - {42,022)
Other 0 6,567,736 (6,567,736)
Total ¢ 22,323300 28,700,564 (6,377,264)




PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2016

(Unaudited)

Two-Year Revenue Comparison

Local sources

StatesourceslIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
' = ' N 2014.15
. . W 2015-16
Federal sources : _
Other —

S0 lSZ,DQ0,000‘ .$4,000,000 - $6,000,000 $8,000,000 316,000,000 $12,000,000

LOCAL SOURCES

Approximately 72% of the District’s 2015-16 local source revenue is generated from real
estate taxes. During 2016, revenues decreased slightly over 2015. The current real estate tax
revenue increased by approximately $75,000. The increase in revenue was offset by a
decrease in pass thru funds by approximately $50,715 and a decrease of $172,880 in the
delinquent tax category. - '

STATE SOURCES
State sources increascd_ by $257,078. The subsidies associated with the Basic Education
Funding, Special Education Funding and the increase in Social Security and Retirement

revenue account for a majority of the increase in state source revenue. Note: The District’s
retirement expense is offset by the revenue source received from the State.

FEDERAL SOURCES

Federal sources of revenue decreased by $42,022 or 9.62% primarily due to lower receipts of
Medicaid ACCESS than in prior year, '



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2016

(Unaudited)

OTHER SOURCES

' Revenues from other sources decreased by $6,567,736 due, primarily, to an increase of
$6,555,000 from proceeds due to the advance refunding of General Obligation Bonds of
Series A and Series B of 2010 and an increase of $9,246 in proceeds from the sale of fixed

assefs in prior year.

The following represents a summary of General Fund Expenditures by function for the year
June 30, 2016 and 2015.

. ‘ Increase
2016 Amount 2015 Amount (Decrease)

Instruction $ 12,860,973 § 12,224,503 $ 636,470
Support Services 6,461,024 6,607,183 (146,159)
Non-Instructional SN
Services: 585,776 ‘ 501,7_17 84,059
Other Financing Uses 1,720,759 9,802,209 (8,081,450)

Total . $ 21,628,532 § 29,135,612 ($7,507,080)

INSTRUCTION

The amount of instructional expenses reported at June 30, 2016 increased approximately
$636,470 from the prior year. The increase can be attributed in part to an increase in employee
benefits related to the pension expense. Other increases include equipment, supplies, and other
purchased services.

SUPPORT SERVICES

The amount of expenditures recognized in this cétegory decreased by approximétely $146,159

. from the prior year. Due to Cafeteria operations being outsourced this year, decreases in

District Cafeteria staffing and benefits related to the penswn expense are attributable to a
majority of the decrease. :

16



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2016

(Unaudited)

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES, CAPITAL OUTLAY, REFUND OF PRIOR
YEAR, AND DEBT SERVICE

"The amount of expenditures in this category decreased by approximately $7,997,391. This
majority of this decrease can be attributed to the advance refunding of General Obligation

Bonds of Series A and Series B of 2010 in prior year.

Two-Year Expenditure Comparison

Other Financing
Uses ]

Non-Instructional
services

= 2015-16
Support Services m2014-15
Instruction -
S0 $5,000,000 $10,000,000 $15,000,000

DEBT SERVICE FUND

-The Debt Service Fund is used to account for resources accumulated for-the payment of long-
term obligations. It is normally used to account for refunding of bond issues and the payment
of the annual debt service on existing bonds. The District periodically reviews its existing debt
and refunds such debt when economically feasible. The following is a recap of the District’s

bond activity for 2016:
Balance , _ Payments/ " Balance Due Within
07/01/2015 - Additions Refinancing 06/30/16 One Year
‘General Obligation Bond 2010A  § 4,405,000 $ - $  (4,405,000) $ -8
General Obligation Bond 2010 B . 3,090,000 - (3,090,000} - -
. 'General Obligation Bond Series 2012 . .9,215,600 ] 0 © (175,000) - 9,040,000 355,000
General Obligation Bond Series 2015 - 6,555,000 - " 6,555,000 1,035,000

S .
© 4 16,710,000.00  6,555,000.00 $(7,670,000.00)  $ 15,595,000.00 $ 1,390,000.00
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2016

(Unaudited)

LONG-TERM DEBT

During the 2015-16 school year, the District issued General Obligation Series of 2015 and
utilized the funds to retire General Obligation SGI‘ICS A of 2010 and General Obligation Series

B of 2010.

At June 30, 2016, the District’s general obligation debt was approximately $15,595,000. This
amount is approximately 29% of its legal limit of $54 million. The District’s bonds have a
stable outlook “AA-“rating from Standard and Poor’s Rating Group.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND (MAJOR)

The Capital Project Fund accounts for major construction projects in the District. The Capital
Projects Fund earned $6,797 of interest income and expended $311,451 on facility
acquisition, construction and improvement projects. Additionally, $217,592 on operation of

non-instructional services was expensed during 2015. The fund balance of the Capital PrOJ ect
. Fund at June 30, 2016 was $1,491,548.

CAPITAL ASSETS

' The District’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2016 is summarized below.

. Governmental Activities Business-type Totals
_ Activities )
6/30/2016 - 6/30/2015 6/30/2016  6/30/2015 6/30/2016  6/30/2015

Land and Site Improvements, Net 140,884 142,810 _ 0 0 140,884 142,810
Building and Improvéments, Net 26,383,747 27,150,731 0 0 26,383,747 27,150,731 -
Furniture and Equipment, Net 1,270,546 1,296,143 4,519 3,155 1,275,065 1,299,298
Vehicles, Net _ ' 22,564 32,952 0 22,564 32,952
Totals - 27,817,741 28,622,636 4,519 3,155 27,822,260 28,625,791

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Noncurrent liabilities will be paid one year or later from the date of the Statement of Net
Position. The District’s noncurrent liabilities include compensated absences, bonds payable,

- and other long-term obligations, net of current portions. It should be noted the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement #45 Accounting.and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Beneﬁts Other than Pensions became effective for the District

m the 2008-2009 fiscal year.

18



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2016

(Unaudited)

The Postemployment Benefits obligation approximated $1,186,607 as of June 30, 2016 and is
reflected on the statement of Net Position.

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
-Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. This statement is intended to improve
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also
improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about. financial
support for pensions that is provided by other entities. The District adopted Statement No. 68
beginning with its fiscal year 2015 financial statements. The District has worked in
conjunction with actuaries and representatives from the State pension system to calculate the
liability moving forward, as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements.

SELECTED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORAMTION -

The District is required to update, on an annual basis, information as it relates to Continuing
Disclosure for Bond Obligation Compliance.

TAX COLLECTION RECORD

: Current R ‘ _ : Percent
Fiscal | Tax Tax Year Percent Total + | Collected
Year | Rate Levy Collection | Collected Deli'ngu.ent- Delinquent | - Total
22%11‘1' 38.9 | 7,448749 | 7279081 | 98% |- 7279081 | 98%
o | 389 | 7476745 | 7936224 | 106% | | | 106%
2;)(}123' 38.9 | 8,142,630 | 7,599,272 | 93% | 530,085 100%
| 389 | 8193201 | 7539252 | 92% | 691,728 100%
2014- | 38.9 | 8,241,643 [ 7,678,691 | 93% | 585,968 |8.264,650 | 100%
2015 | - ' o |
2015- | 38.0 | 8,265,642 | 7,753,656 | 94% | 413,088 |8,166744 | 99%

2016

The school district sells its delinquent taxes to a third-party entity for a lump sum payment
determined annually. ' ‘
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2016

(Unaudited)

For years 10-11 through [1-12, the tax levy is:
Current Levy + Penalties — Discounts, Exonerations and Refunds

For years 10-11 through 11-12, tax collection included delinquent taxes.

TOP TEN TAXPAYERS

Taxpayer Description Assessed Totals
Closeout Distribution Inc, Distribution Center S 14,591,810
Penn and Dye Fishing Co. “Manufacturing 2,085,445
Gold Mills Inc. Manufacturing 1,867,975
Tremont Health RE 1 LP Nursing Home 1,735,965
Keystone Potato Products LLC Manufacturing 1,701,850
Newstead Development LLC Manufacturing 1,654,120
Heaco LP o . Manufacturing 1,501,945
Jay Dana LLC Hotel 1,492,000
WPS Westwood Generation LLC Cogen Plant 1,435,930
HIR Ent. Inc. - Hotel 1,040,600

Total 7 $ 29,107,640

HISTORY OF ASSESSED VALUE, MARKET VALUE AND COMMON LEVEL RATIO

" School Year

20

‘Assessed Valuation _ Market Value Common Level Ratio
2002-2003 171,882,330 372,846,703 46.10%
2003-2004. 176,009,150 377,703,038 46.60%
2004-2005 178,065,980 395,702,178 45.00%
2005-2006 179,900,650 416,436,690 43.20%
2006-2007 185,255,730 447,477,609 41.40%
2007-2008 191,651,675 474,385,334 40.40%
2008-2009 200,870,350 525,838,612 38.20%
2009-2010 203,125,445 429,440,687 47.30%
2010-2011 223,042,380 578,439,378 38.60%
. 2011-2012 223,516,875 590,248,036 37.90%
2012-2013 223,516,875 590,248,036 37.90%
2013-2014 224,925,135 593,611,992 37.90%
2014-2015 226,022,575 598,025,605 37.80%
2015-2016** 227,380,660 ) 601,311,603 36.93%



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2016

(Unaudited)

**¥Source: Pennsylvania State Tax Equalization Board (STEB).

MUNICIPAL REAL ESTATE TAX RATES

Municipality School District Municipal County Total

Frailey Township * 389 19.25 13.98 62.13
Pine Grove Borough _ 38.9 ‘ 14 13.98 66.88
Pine Grove Township 38.9 0 13.98 52.88
Tremont Borough ** 38.9 14 13.98 66.88
Tremont Township 38.9 -7 13.98 59.88
Washington Twp 38.9 3.5 13.98 56.38

* Includes millage street lighting -

**|ncludes millage for fire house

Source: . :

Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED)

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The District expects some growth in the near future given the residential and commercial
nature of the local economy, though the amount of growth is not readily determinable. The
District’s assessed values over the prior two years averaged minimal growth, and above-
average growth was seen in the current year. The District’s student population has remained
“consistent durmg the same period. :

The District is also complying with the enacted law as passed within the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania entitle Act 1 of Special Session of 2007. The goal of the Act 1 legislation seeks
to reduce property taxes but in doing so also ensures that the District does not suffer any loss
of revenue attributable to the shifting of local revenue sources. During June 30, 2016, the
District has cornphed w1th all aspects of Act 1.

RetIrement Costs assomated w1th District Personnel mcreased during the fiscal year due to an
increase in the rate certified by the Public School Employees’ Retirement System, The table
below illustrates the rates charged to the District.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2016 "
{Unaudited})

District Rate on

Year Covered Payroll
2010-11 5.64%
2011-12 8.65%
2012-13 12.36%
2013-14 16.93%
2014-15 21.40%
2015-16 25.84%
2016-17 30.03%
2017-18 32.57%

Over the next several years, it is projected that the contribution rates for the Public School
Employees’ Retirement System of Pennsylvania will rise, though not as significantly as in
prior years, Based on actuarial projections, it is anticipated that by the school year 2020-2021,
the total employer contribution rate is projected to be 36.13%.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS
The followmg represents the Collective Bargalnmg Agrecmcnts in effect at June 30, 2016:

The Pine Grove Area School District and the Pine Grove Area Education Assoc1at10n
currently have a contract for a term commencmg September 1, 2015 and ending June 30,
2019.

Thé Pine Grove Area School District and the Ameriéé.n Federation bf State, County, and
Municipal Employees currently have a contract for a term commencing July 1, 2015 and
ending June 30, 2018. .

~ The Pine Grove Area School District and the Pine Grove Area Administrative Staff and Act
- 93 Staff currently have a contract fora tcrm commencing July 1, 2016 and ending J une 30,
2021, .

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requeéts for additional

financial information should be addressed to the Jodie I. Dermo, Business Administrator, Pine
Grove Area School District, 103 School Street, Pine Grove, PA17963. '
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

JUNE 30, 2016

Governmental Business-Type
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES Activities Activities Total
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 10,289,985 $ 1,016,406 $ 11,306,391
Taxes receivable, net 168,995 0 168,995
Intergovernmental receivables 1,539,008 7,062 1,546,070
Internal balances 694,296 0 694,296
Prepaid Expenses 108,508 0 109,508
Other account receivables 39,065 0 39,065
Inventories 53,490 11,892 65,482
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 12,894,347 1,035,460 13,929,807
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
l.and and site Improvements - net 138,959 0 138,959
Building and building improvements - net 25,759,633 4] 25,759,633
Machinery and equipment - net 1,088,332 9,653 1,097,885
Vehicles - net , 13,525 0 13,525
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 27,000,449 9,653 27,010,002
TOTAL ASSETS 39,894,796 1,046,013 40,939,809
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,645,834 0 1,645,834

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES  § _ 41,540,630 $ 1045013 $ 42,585,643

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND

NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

CURRENT LIABILITIES )

Internal balances : $ 0 $ 691,961 $ 691,961

Accounts payable 545,523 16,282 561,805

Accrued salarles and benefits 1,837,479 0 . 1,837,479

Current portion of long-term debt _ 1,685,000 0 1,685,000

Accrued interest 114,490 0 114,490
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,182,492 708,243 4,890,735
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bonds payable 12,520,000 0 12,520,600

QOPER liability 1,186,607 o 1,186,607

Pension Liability 32,097,000 32,097,000

Long-term portion of compensated absences 323,937 0 323,837
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 46,127,544 0 46,127,644
TOTAL LIABILITIES 50,310,036 708,243 51,018,279
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 511,071 17,311 528,382
NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

invested In capital assets, net of related debt 12,795,449 9,653 12,805,002

Restricted for: :

Capital projects 1,491,548 0 1,491,548

Unrestricted (Deficit) (23,567 474) 309,906 {23,257 ,568)

TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICIT) (9,280,477} 319,459 (8,961,018)

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND NET POSITION (DEFICIT) $ 41,540,630 $ 1045013 $ 42,585,643

See noles to financial staterments
which are an integral part of this statement.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2016

Total
Capital Governmental
General Projects Funds

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OQUTFLOWS

OF RESOURCES
ASSETS

Cash and investments $ 8702681 $ 1,588,004 $ 10,290685

Taxes receivable 168,995 0 168,995

Internal Balances 694,296 0 694 296

Intergovernmental receivables 1,539,008 0 1,539,008

Prepaid expense 109,508 0 109,508

Other receivables 38,365 0 38,365

Inventories 53,490 0 53,490
TOTAL ASSETS 11,306,343 1,588,004 12,894,347
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 0 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED

OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 11,306,343 $ 1,588,004 $ 12894347
LIABILITIES, DEFERRD INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES : :

Accounts payable $ 449,087 96,456 § 545 523

Other current liabilities o 0 0

Accrued salaries and benefits 1,837,479 g 1,837,478
TOTAL LIABILITIES : 2,286,546 96,456 2,383,002
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 511,071 0 511,071

" FUND BALANCES

Restricted 0 1,491,548 1,491,548

Committed 300,000 0 300,000

Unassigned 8,208,726 0 8,208,726
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 8,508,726 1,491,548 10,000,274
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

$ 12,894,347

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES $ 11,306,343 § 1,588,004

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because;

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in
governmental funds.

" Cost of capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not
due and payable in the current period and are not reported as liabilities
in the funds.

Bond principle payable
Pension Liability - Net
‘Compensated absences
"OPEB

Governmental funds report debt issuance premiums and discounts
as an other financing source or use at the time of issuance. Premiums
and discounts are reported as an unamortized asset or liability in the
District-wide financial statements. :

Govemfnental funds do not report a liability for accrued interest
until due and payable.

- TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICIT) - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

" See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of thls statement.
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10,000,274

47,495,031
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(14,205,000)

{30,681,000)

(323,937)
(1,186,607)

229,834

{114,490)

(9,280,477)




PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

REVENUES
Local sources
State sources
Federal sources
TOTAL REVENUES

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Support services
Operation of non-instructional services
Facilities acquisition, construction, and
improvement services
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Debt service
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING (USES)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

Total
Capital Governmental
General Projects Funds

$ 10,736,543 $ 6,797 3 10,743,340
11,170,878 0 11,170,978
415,779 0 415,779
22,323,300 6,797 22,330,097

0 0 0

22,323,300 6,797 22,330,097
12,860,973 0 12,860,973
6,461,024 0 6,461,024
585,776 217,592 803,368

0 311,451 311,451

19,907,773 529,043 20,436,816
1,720,759 0 1,720,759
1 ._720,759 0 1,720,759
21,628,532 529,043 22,157,575
694,768 (522,246) 172,522
7,813,958 2,013,784 9,827,752

$ 8508726 $ 1491548 §$ 10,000,274

See notes to financial statements

which are an integral part of this statement.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

TOTAL NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ' $ 172,522

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. 1,390,000

Previous year bond costs are expensed in the governmental funds when
incurred but are amortized in the Statement of Activities. (35,177)

Expenses reported in the Statement of Activities, such as compensated
absences, OPEB, and net pension liability do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. (1,971,099)

interest is recognized in governmental funds when pald but is accrued in the

Statement of Activities. | ‘ (21,197)
Governmental funds recognize capital outlays as expendltures versus as capital

assets in the Statement of Net Assets. _ 389,131
Depreciation expense'is recognized in the- Staler_heht of Activities but is not

recognized in govemmenta! funds. _ {1,206,422)
CHANGE iN NET‘ PO_SI'I_'ION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES | _ | $ (1,282,242)

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this staterment.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Variance With
Actual Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts {Budgetary Positive
QOriginal Final ~ Basis) {Negative)
REVENUES
Loca!l sources $ 10,776,959 $ 10,776,959 10,736,543 (40,416)
State sources 11,047,632 11,047,632 11,170,978 123,346
. Federal sources 468 682 ‘468,682 415,779 {62,903)
TOTAL REVENUES 22,293,273 22,293,273 22,323,300 30,027
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 0 0 0 0
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER ‘

FINANCING SOURCES 22,293,273 22,293,273 22,323,300 30,027
EXPENDITURES

Instruction 12,762,402 12,762,402 12,860,973 {98,571)

Support services 6,934,278 6,934,278 6,461,024 473,254

Operation of non-instructional services 442 980 442 980 585,776 (142,796)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 20,139,660 20,139,660 19,907,773 231,887
OTHER FINANCING ('USES)

Debt service 1,718,534 1,718,534 1,720,759 (2,225)

Interfund fransfers 300,000 300,000 ‘ ] 300,000

Budgetary reserve 400,000 400,000 0 400,000 -

Refunds of prior year revenues 0 0 0 0
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING (USES) 2,418,534 2,418,534 1,720,759 697,775
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER .

FINANCING (USES) - 22,558,194 22,558,194 21,628,532 - 829,662
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (264,921) (264,921) 694,768 959,689
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,264,325 7,264,325 7,813,958 549,633
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 6999404 3 65999404 $ 8508726 $. 1,509,322 l

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF RET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2016

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Intergovernmental receivables
Inventories

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Machinery and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND NET POSITION

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Due to other funds
Accounts Payable
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION :
Invested in capital assets - net of related debt
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement.
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$

$

$

Food
Service

1,016,406
7,062
11,892
1,035,460

348,242

(336,689)
9,653

0

1,045,013

691,961
16,282

—_—_—

708,243
708,243
17,311
9,653

309,906
319,459

}

1,045,013



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

. OPERATING REVENUES

Local sources:
__Food service revenues
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES -
. Personnel services - salaries .
~Personnel services - employee benef ts
. Ofther purchased services

- ‘-Supphes i

~ Depreciation

-__.,‘;-"Duesandfees PR B
:fTOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES L

L OPERATING (LOSS)

| "'."NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Earnlngs on mvestments

Staté sources

- Federal sources . ' ' ' o
L 'TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

- ‘-CHANGE IN NET POSITION

:NET POSITION BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION - END OF YE_AR

- See notes to financial statements
~which are an integral part of this statement.
A

Food

477,115

101,895
© 46,010
706898

33,707 -

At .
. 564
890 490

| '*(4?1-*:*3,-'327:5) -

T 41,080
445484 -

2,108



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers and intergovernments
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid for selling and general expenses

NET CASH PROVIDED OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Grants and subsidies received from non—operatang activities:
State sources

Federal sources ,
NET CASH PROVIDED BY NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

. CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES”

Purchase of Fixed Assets

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Earnings on investments '

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR
OPERATING (LOSS)

- ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING (LOSS)
TO NET CASH (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Deprecuatlon

Changes in current assets and current liabilities

(Increase) Decrease in inventories
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable
{Increase) Decrease in intergovernmental receivables
{Increase) Decrease in other recsivables
Increase (Decrease) in accrued salaries and benefits
Increase (Decrease) in advance to other funds
Increase (Decrease} in deferred revenue

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

TOTAL CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
" See notes to financial statements

which are an integral part of this statement.
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Food
Service

$ 475850
 (83,640)
(159,742)
232,468

41,030
402,981
444 011

(6,450)

1,473
671,502
344,904

$ 1,016,406

$ (413,375)

1,416

(2,940)
16,282
(5,138)
1,084
(11,273)
643,623
2,789
645,843

$ 232,468



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2016 -

Private Total
Purpose - . - Fiduciary
Trust Activity - Funds
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTLOWS :
OF RESOURCES
ASSETS ‘
. Cash $ 82,930 85,926 $ 168,856
Ifterfund accounts recewable . B25 3680 - ... 985 .
TOTAL ASSETS 83,555 86,286 169 841
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 0 o 0

" TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
.. ‘OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES DEFERREDINFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

‘ LIABILITIES :
Interfund accounts payable

, Other current Ilablhtles .0
-',‘TOTAL LlABlLITIES 7 2,960
o DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES =

- ;;-NET POSITION
- Unrestncted

. TOTAL NET POSITION

% 2,960

86,286

86,286

§ 2980

., 86,286

- 80,595,

86,286

89,246

80, 505

80,595

""-7"',,80 595"'

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

86,286

OF RESOURCES AND NETPOSITION " §

‘See notes to financial statements
Wthh are an integral part of this statemerit.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Private -
Purpose
| _ Trust
~ ADDITIONS _
Investment income ‘ _ - B . § 235
Contributions and donations 1,181
TOTAL ADDITIONS . S R - 1,416

- DEDUCTIONS | - AR B 21600

. CHANGE IN NET POSITION = T (dsa)

* NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR _BL779

See notes to financial statements
- which are an integral part of this statement.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The Pine Grove Area School District (the “District”) is governed by the Pine Grove
Area School District Board of Education (the “Board™), which has responsibility and
contro! over all activities related to public school education within the District.  The
District receives funding from local, state, and federal government sources and
must comply with all of the requirements of these funding source entities. Board
members are elected by the public and have decision-making authority, the power
to designate management, the ability to significantly influence operations, and the
primary accountability for fiscal matters.

The financial statements of the Pine Grove Area School District have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generatly accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP) as applied to local govemment units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant accounting policies of the District are described

below.

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) approved
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and Management's Discussion and
Analysis -for State and Local Governments. ‘

The financial statements include:

1. -Management’s Discuss-ion-and Analyéis (MD&A), providing an analysis of
the District's overall financial position and results of operations.

2. Financial statements prepared using full-accrual accounting for all of the
District's acfivities.-

3. -A Chaﬁgé in the fund financial statements to focus on major funds.
' REPORTING ENTITY

The District does not have any component units nor is the District a component
unit of any other primary government. ' '
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

" NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

District-wide statements - The statement of net position and the statement of
activities provide information about the financial activities of the overall district,
except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the
double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the
governmental and business-type activities of the District. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-
exchange transactions. Business-Type activities are financed in whole or in part
by fees charged to external parties. ‘

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each business-type activity of the District and for each
function of the District's governmental activities. '

1.  Direct Expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
program. ' ‘

2. Program revenues include 1) charges to students or -recipients who
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges
provided by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a

~particutar function. - , -

3. Taxes and other items not properly included among program.revenues '
are reported as general revenues. :

Depreciation expense can be specifically identified by function and is included in
the direct expenses of each function. Interest on general fong-term debt is
considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of
Activities. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these

statements.

Fund Financial Statements - The fund financial statements provide information
about the District's funds, including fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each
fund category - governmental, proprietary and fiduciary - -are presented. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise
funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and

entetprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - continued

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services result from
exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund.
Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.
Enterprise fund operating revenues are related to charges for food in the District's
cafeteria. The primary non-operating revenues are federal nutrition program
grants and commodities received from the U.S. Department of Agriculture.

The fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financia! statements by type
(agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third
party and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the District, these
funds are not incorporated into the District-wide statements.

The District reports the following major governmental fun.d_s:

General Fund - The Génerai-Fund is the District's primary- operating fund. It
_accounts for all financial resources of the District, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities,
other than those financed by proprietary and trust funds. The District also uses
the capital projects fund to pay initial functional costs, such as textbooks, involved
in opening a facility, therefore all expenditures are not recorded as capital outiay.

The District reports the following major proprietary fund types:

- Food SerVice Fund - The Food Service Fund is used to acco_unt for all financial

transactions related to the food service operation.
Other fund types:

Agency Funds - These funds account for assets held by the District as an agent
for various student groups and clubs.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The district-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange
transactions, in which the District gives (or receives) value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, and
donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the

- fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is
recognized -in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied.

Governmenta! funds are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recogmzed when measurable and available. The District
considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if they
are collected within s:xty days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when
the related fund fiability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general
long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital
asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in govermnmental funds.
Proceeds of general long-term liabilities are reported as other financing sources.

All business-type activities and enterprise funds of the dlstrlct follow FASB
Statements and Interpretations on or before November 30, 1989, ‘Accounting
Principles -Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletms unless those
pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

BUDGETING

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund.
Project-length financial plans are used for capital projects funds. Al
unencumbered budget appropriations, except capital projects, lapse at the end of
each fiscal year.

. At the fund level, actual expenditures cannot exceed budgeted appropriations,
however, with proper approval by the school board, budgetary transfers between
accounts can be made. The budgeted financial statements represented in this
report reflect the final budget authorization, including all transfers.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The District's cash ahd cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition. -

Investments with a maturity of one year or less at the time of 'purchase are recorded
at cost or amortized cost. Those with a maturity of greater than one year are
reported at fair value. Changes in the fair value of investments are recorded as

investment income.
INVENTORY

Inventories are recorded using the consumption method of accounting and consist
of purchased food, supplies, and surplus commodities received from the federal
government. Food and supply purchases are recorded at invoice cost, computed
on a first-in, first-out method. Surplus commodities are stated at standard costs,
as determined by the Department of Agriculture. In the fund based financial
statements, commodities received are recorded as deferred revenue until

consumed.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, and furniture and
equipment, are reported in the government-wide financial statements. The
District defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$1,500. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Maijor outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during construction is not capitalized.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the foliowing usefu! -

lives:
Description ‘ . Useful Life
Land | Not Depreciated
Land Improvements 20 years
Buildings and Improvements o 15-30 years
Furniture and Equipment ' ~ 5-1byears
Vehicles ‘ 3-15 years
COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Compensated absences are those for which employees receive pay. A liability is
recorded through the use of estimates, which apply historical date to current
factors. The District maintains records of unused absences and applies current
and/or contracted compensation rates to the various types of compensated
absences. Sick leave is recorded using the termination payment method, which
has no current maximum per employee. The District allows only restricted
sabbatical leave and therefore, has no recorded liability in advance of the
sabbatical. : '

40



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

in government-wide financial statements as well as proprietary fund fi nancial
statements, all accrued liabilities and long-term debt are reported as liabilities in
the statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line
method, which approximates the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs
are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In fund financial statements,"governmental fund types recognize bond premiums
-and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The
face amount of debt issued is reported as other fi nancing sources. Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance

" costs, whether or not withheld form the actual debt proceeds received, are reported
as debt semce expenditures. :

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Restricted assets are cash and cash equivalents whose use is limited by legal
requirements such as a bond indenture. Restricted assets are reported only in
the District-wide financial statements.

FUND'EQUITY

In the fund financial statements governmental funds report fund balance in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 54 (see Note 13). :

NET F’OS[TION

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities in the District-
wide financial statements. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related -
debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balance of any long-term debt used to build or acquire the capital

assets.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
FOOD SERVICE FUND - UNALLOCATED COSTS

The District does not attempt to allocate Building-Wide Costs to the Food Service
Fund. Thus, General Fund expenditures (utilities, janitorial services, insurance,
etc.) which partially benefit the Food Service Fund are not proportionately
recognized within the Food Service Fund. Similarly, the Food Service Fund does
not recognize a cost for the building space it occupies (no facilities rental expense).

POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS - COBRA BENEFITS -

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the District
makes health care benefits available to eligible employees and eligible
dependents. Certain requirements are outlined by the federal government for the
coverage. The premium plus 2% administration fee is paid in full by the insured
on or before the tenth day of the month for the actual month covered. This
program is offered for a duration of 18 months. There is no associated cost to the
District under this program, and there are two participants in the program as of
June 30, 2016.

RETIREE BENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 6; the District makes health
care benefits available to all eligible employees who retired from the District. The
premium is paid in full by the insured who retired prior to June 30, 2012 on or
before the tenth day of the month for the actual month covered. The District pays
the full cost of retirees who retired as of June 30, 2012 less $100 contribution by
the retiree. There are currently thirty-five participants in the program as of June 30,

2016. _

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted

~ accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS:
DEPOSITS

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's
deposits may not be returned. The deposit policy of the school district adheres to
state statutes and prudent business practice. Cash equivalents are defined as
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and include investments with original maturities of three months or less.
Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits at various financial
institutions, a money market mutual fund investment in Pennsylvania Treasurer's
Invest Program.for Local Government, a money market fund and certificate of
deéposit, the Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset Fund (PSDLAF), and cash
on hand of $1,175. The market values of deposits are equal to the cost of the

deposits.

Under Sectlon 440.1 of the Pubhc School Code of 1949, as amended, the D:stnct
is permitted to:

Deposit in savings accounts or time deposits or share accounts of institutions
~.insured by the Federa! Deposit Insurance Corporation to the extent that such
accounts are so insured and, for any amounts above the insured maximum,
provided‘ that approved collateral as provided by law is ,pledged by the_-depository.

At Jurie 30, 20186, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits was $11 475,946.
and the bank balance was $12,0001,04. Of the bank balance, $285,541. was
covered by federal depository insurance coverage and $11,751,040. was exposed
to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and the collateral held by the

_depository’s agent was not in the District's name.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - continued

INVESTMENTS

The investment policy of the school district adheres to state statutes and prudent
business practices. The investments of the school district consist of certificates of
deposit and U.S. Agency Obligations as authorized by the Board. Investments
are stated at cost including accrued interest which approximates market value.

The District invests in the Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset Fund
(PSDLAF) and the Pennsylvania Treasurer's Invest Program for Local
Government as authorized by the Board. PSDLAF was established to enable
school districts to pool funds for investment in instruments authorized by Section
4401 of the Pennsylvania Public School Code of 1949, as amended.
Pennsylvania Treasurer’s Invest Program for Local Government insures that it will
not place deposits with any single issuing institution if the largest participant's pro
rata share of such deposits exceeds $100,000., unless such deposits are secured
by (1) Treasurer, federai agencies (collateralized at 102%) or (2) certificates of
deposit {collateralized by 120%).

'As of June 30, 2016, the District had the following investments.

PA School District Liquid Asset Fund (PSDLAF) $ 1,594,086
Total Investments - $ 1,594,086

Although not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission and not
subject to regulatory oversight, PA Invest and PSDLAF act fike money market -
mutual funds in that their objective is to maintain a stable net asset of $1 per share,
_are rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization and are subject

~ to an independent annual audit.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - continued
INVESTMENTS - continued

Interest Rate Risk

The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fail value losses arising from
increasing interest rates. It is the practice of the District to limit its interest rate
risk by investing in securities with maturity dates under one year. At June 30,
2016, the District's investments in securities of U.S. agencies had maturity dates
of less than one year.

Cus_todial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments
or coltateral security that are in the possession of an outside party. The District
has no investments subject to custodial credit risk.

Credit Risk

‘Un-der Section 4440.1 of the Public School Code of 1949, as amended, the District
is permitted to invest its monies as follows:

Obligations of (1) the United States of America or any of its agencies or
instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America,
(2) the Commonweaith of Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or instrumentalities
backed by the full faith and credit of the Commonwealth, or (3) any political
- subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or
instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the political subdivision.

45



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued-

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - continued
INVESTMENTS - continued

Con-éentration Risk

The District does not have a policy that would limit the amount it may invest in any
one issuer. The District's investments are with PA Invest and Pennsylvania
School District's Liquid Asset Fund (PSDLAF).

RECONCILIATION OF CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

The classification of cash, cash equivalents, and investments on the combined
financial statements is based on criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 9. A
_reconciliation between classifications of cash and investments on the combined
financial statements and the classifications per GASB Statement No. 3 is as

follows:
Cash & Cash
Equivalents Investments Total
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and ' '
Investments $ 9881861 $ 1,594,086 $ 11475947

NOTE 3 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES:

Intergovernmental receivables listed ih_the General Fund at June 30, 2016, are
- comprised of the foliowing:

State Share of Social Security $ 80,381
State Share of Retirement - : 515,818
State Share of Transportation : 17,501
State Rental Subsidy _ - 66,239
Federal Programs 571,045
Local Programs : 288.024
Total Intergovernmental Receivables $ 1,539,008
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 4 - GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT - continued

General Obligation Bonds - Series of 2012

On June 14, 2012, the District issued $9,620,000. of General Obligation Bonds —
Series of 2012, which was used to advance refund all of the District’s outstanding
General Obligation Bonds - Series of 2008 and pay certain costs and expenses
related to the issuance of the Bonds. Interest rates on the Bonds vary from .45%
to 2.50% and mature in various amounts beginning March 1, 2013 and ending

~March 1, 2023.
- General Obligation Bonds - Series of 2015

On May 20, 2015, the District issued $6,555,000. of General Obligation Bonds —
Series of 2015, which was used to advance refund all of the District's outstanding
General Obligation Bonds - Series A of 2010 and General Obligation Bond —
Series B of 2010 and pay certain costs and expenses related to the issuance of
the Bonds. Interest rates on the Bonds vary from .32% to 2.10% and mature in
various amounts beginning September 15, 2015 and ending February 15, 2024.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

'NOTE 4 - GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT - continued
Compensated Absences
The General Long-Term Debt group of accounts includes liability of $323,937,
which represents the amount of compensated absences computed by using
unused sick and vacation days at current compensation rates. If an employee
separates from service for reasons other than sickness or retirement, no payout is
required. If an employee retires with unused compensated absences, the payout
policy is as follows:
Emergency and persona! - no payout
Vacation (administrative pefsonnel) - limited accumulation of vacation days
Sickness - payout is based on age and years of service in the District.
Other Post-employment Benefits
General Long-Term Debt includes $1,186,607. of liabilities, which represent other

benefits provided upon termination of employment. The reader should consuit
the separate footnote on these benefits for more information. - '
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS:

A summary of capital asset activity during the fiscal year follows:

Balance

Balance Net Additions
June 30, 2015  (Deductions) June 30, 2016
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated ‘
Land $ 64,449 § 0 % 64,449
Total Capital Assets, Not Being
Depreciated ‘ 64,449 0 64,449
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated: .
Buildings and Improvements 40,766,098 222 578 40,988,676
Furniture and Equipment 6,099,504 166,552 6,266,056
Vehicles 87,740 0 87,740
Site Improvements 88,109 0 88,109
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 47,041,451 389,130 47,430,581
Accumulated Depreciation For, -
Buildings and Improvements - {14,382,351) (846,691) (15,229,042)
Furniture and Equipment (4,828,958) (348,767) (5,177,725)
Vehicles (65,1786) (9,039) - {74,215)
- Site Improvements -~ {11,674) {1,925) {13,599)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (19,288,159) (1,206,422) (20,494 581)
Governmental Activities - .
Capital Assets, Net $ 27,817,741 § (817,292) $ 27,000,449
Business-type Activities:
Furniture/Equipment $ 339,792 % 6,450 3% 346,242
Less: Accumulated Deprecation {335,273) (1,416) (336,689)
Business-type Activities - o
Capital Assets, Net "% 4519 $ 5034 $ 9,553
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS - continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the District as follows:

Instructional $ 819,259
Instructional Student Support 241,511
Student Activities ' 14,169
Operation 131,483
Total Depreciation Expense $~ 1206422

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND OPERATING BALANCES:

| Individual fund operating balances for the year ended June 30, 2016 were as

follows: :
Due From Due To
Scholarship Fund % ~ 625 $ 2960
Activities Fund . : -0 0.
General Fund 694,296 ' g 0
Cafeteria Fund 0 691,961
Total Ali Funds $ 694,927 $ 694921

' All balances are current and are payable within one year. Balances exist due to
normal operating transfers between individuat funds '
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 7 - TAXES ASSESSED AND DEFERRED REVENUE:

The following is a listing of the taxes assessed along with their respective
assessed valuations:

_ Assessed

Tax Type Milage/Rate Valuation

Real Estate - Schuylkill County 389 mills $ 8,277,281
Occupation Tax - Act 511 $200.00/person 1,173,900
Total Assessed Valuation _ $ 9,457 181

The following is the tax calendar showing levy date, payment periods and
delinquent dates for the above listed taxes:

Levy date . - duly 1

Discount (2%) payment period _ ~ July 1 to August 31

face payment period September 1 to October 31
Penalty (10%) payment period  November 1 to December 31
Delinquent date ' “January 1

The School District, in accordance with GAAP, recognized the delinquent and
unpaid taxes receivable reduced by an allowance for uncollectible taxes as
determined by the administration. A portion of the net amount estimated to be
collectible was measurable and available within the 60 days, was recognized as
revenue, and the balance deferred in the fund financial statements. All taxes,
net of uncollectible amounts, are recognized in the period for which levied in the
- government-wide financial statements, regardless of when collected.

The balances at June 30, 2016, are as follows:
: o Governmental Funds

Alowance Net
Gross for Estimated Tax
Taxes  Uncoliectible to be Revenue Deferred
Tax Receivable Taxes Collectible  Recognized Taxes

“Per Capilta $ 0% 0 ¢ 0 3 0 $ 0
Occupation _ 0 0 0 0 0
Earned Income - 158,771 0 158,771 168,771 0
Realty Transfer ' 6,092 0 6,092 6,092 0
Occupational Privilege Tax 4,132 0 4132 4132 . 0
Tax $168995 $ O $ 168995 § 168,995 $— 0
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT |
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 7 - TAXES ASSESSED AND DEFERRED REVENUE - continued

The District entered an agreement to sell 100% of its delinquent real estate tax
claims to Northwest Pennsylvania Incubator Association. The agreement met the
criteria for recognition as a sale as the District’s continuing involvement with these
receivables was effectively terminated. In 2016, the District received $413 088. of
proceeds from the sale (net of expenses of $46 210).

NOTE 8 - BUDGETARY INFORMATION:

No budget versus actual comparison for the Capital Projects Fund has been
displayed in the accompanying financial statements as no budget is required nor
was adopted for the fund. ‘

NOTE 9 - OPERATING LEASES:

The District leases nine copiers and two mail machines under operating leases.
The District has the option to purchase the copiers for fair market value, .
determined by the lessor, at the end of the lease, or the option to continue the
lease on a month- to—month basis. The estimated future minimum rental
payments are as follows:

Year Ending :
June 30, Amount
2017 ' $ 27,592
2018 : 23,712
2019 ' 4,848
2020 ' 4,848
Total $_ 61,000

Rehtal‘expehse for all operating leases for the year ended June 30, 2016 was
$27,745. ,
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES;

The collective bargaining agreement between the District and the employees
expires as follows: '

Teaching Staff June 30, 2019
Support Staff June 30, 2018
Act 93 Employees June 30, 2021

GRANT PROGRAMS

The District participates in numerous state and federal grant programs, which are
governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs
charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by

~ the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the District has not complied .
with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money
received may be required and the collectability of any related receivable at
June 30, 2012 may be impaired. In the opinion of the District, there are no
significant ‘contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and
regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been
recorded in the accompanying combined financial statements for such
contingencies.

During the normal course of business, the District is subject to numerous disputes
and claims. At June 30, 2016, there were no items of pending or threatened
litigation which management feels would have a material effect on the District's

financial conditi_on. o
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NOTE 10 -

NOTE 11 -

NOTE 12 -

PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - continued

FUTURE LIABILITY

The District, along with the participating districts of the Schuyikill Vocational
Education Center, will be responsible for a portion of a fiability due to another
sending school district based on an overpayment made by the member district.
At the time of this report, the total amount due for all districts is $257,647. The
District will be responsible for approximately 9.091% of 2015-2016 costs and
approximately 9.328% of 2016-2017 costs. The remaining portion due will be
paid over four years and will be calculated based on the sending school districts’

enrollment.
REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES:

During the current year, revenues from local sources consisted of the following:

General Other
‘ Fund Funds Total
Property Taxes, Current $ 7753656 $ 0 $ 775365
Earned Income Taxes 1,117,522 0 - 1,117,822
Other Current Taxes 913,591 _ 0 913,691
Delinquent Taxes 486,366 ‘ ‘ 0 486,366
Investment Income 25,753 - 6,797 32,550
Co-curricular Activities - 60,842 0 60,842
Other Revenue from Local Sources 378,813 0 - 378813
T otal _ $ 10,736,543 $ 6797 % 10,743,340

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS:

PLAN DESCRIPTION

The Pine Grove Area School District Retiree Health Care Plan (the Plan) is a
single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan administered by the School
Board. The Plan provides postemployment healthcare benefits to eligible
retirees of the District in accordance with the various. labor contracts
and personnel policies. At July 1, 2016, 38 retired employees were eligible
to participate. Inasmuch as the Plan has no assets, reporting an other employee
benefit trust fund in the accompanying financial statements is not required nor
was a separate or stand-alone report issued.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 12 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - continued

FUNDING POLICY

The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established
and may be amended by the School Board, subject to applicable labor contracts.
Plan members are not required to contribute; however, for the member and the
spouse, coverage ceases upon the later of the exhaustion of accumulated sick
days at retirement used to obtain health coverage, or Medicare eligibility. Ifa
refiree runs out of unused sick days priof to reaching Medicare eligibility, they may
continue on the District plan by paying 100% of premiums. ' _

The District may contribute the annual required contribution of the employer
(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of
GASB Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost
each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over
a period not to exceed thirty years. For 2016, the District made no contributions

" and instead elected to continue funding on a pay-as-you-go basis, which
amounted to $323,907. for 2016. These costs are recognized as an expense
when claims or premiums are paid. ‘ .

ANNUAL OPEB COST AND NET OPEB OBLIGATION

For 2016, the corhp'onents of the District’s annual OPEB (other postemployment
benefit) cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the Plan, and
_changes in the District's net OPEB obligation to the Plan were as follows: '

Annual Required Contribution % 616,370
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation - 4.50% . 47,275
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (203,677) -
- Annual OPEB Cost , 459,968

Contributions or Payments Made : (323,907)
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 136,061
Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of Year : . 1,050,546
Net OPEB Obligation, End of Year $ 1,186,607
Percentage of Annual OPEB Cost Contributed . 70.42%
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 12 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - continued
FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS

The funded status of the-Plan as of July 1, 2016, the date of the most recent
actuarial valuation is as follows:

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $ 3,716463
Actuarial Value of Assets 0
Unfunded AAL (UAAL) $ 3,716,463
Funded Ratio 0.00%
Covered Payroll . ' $ 8,010,119
UAAL as Percentage of Covered Payroll ‘ 46.40%

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of potentiat occurrences of certain
events in the future. Examples include assumption about future employment,
mortality, healthcare costs trends, inflation, etc. - Amounts determined regarding
the funided status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the District
are subject to constant changes and modifications as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates and assumptions are formed regarding
the future. Projections of retiree benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on current plan activities as it is handled by the District and the benefits are
received by the eligible plan members and include the types of benefits provided
at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the District ‘and plan members. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. :
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 12 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - continued
ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS - continued

In the July 1, 2016, actuarial valuation, the individual entry age normal actuarial
cost method was used. There were also merit and seniority salary rate increase
assumptions taken into consideration and those are detailed in the actuarial study
and are based on age. There was also an inflationary rate assumption factored
into the calculation. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of active
member payroll over a period of 30 years.

NOTE 13 - GASB STATEMENT NO. 54:

On June 15, 2010, the Govermnmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
issued GASB Statement No. 54 (Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions). This Statement defines the different types of fund
balances that a governmenta! entity must use for financial reporting purposes.

GASB-54 establishes criteria for classifying fund balances into specifically defined
classifications that should be based on hierarchy that reflects the extent to which
the government is bound to honor constraints on how those funds can be spent.
Established classifications are as follows:

Nonspendable — Amounts that cannot be spent because they are éither in a
' nonspendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

. Restricted — Amounts constrained to be used for a specific purpose stipulated by
constitution, external resource providers or through enabling legislation.

Committed — Amounts constrained to be used for a specific purpose determined
by a formal action of the School District Board of Directors (the district’s highest
leve! of decision-making authority). '

Assigned — Amounts intended to be used for a specific purpose by thé finance
committee or an individual authorized by the governing body.

Unassigned — Residual amounts available for any purpose not contained in other
classifications.

58



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 13 - GASB STATEMENT NO. 54 — continued
ORDER OF FUND BALANCE SPENDING POLICY

The District’s policy is to apply expenditures against nonspendable fund balance,
restricted fund balance, committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and
unassigned fund balance at the end of the fiscal year by adjusting entries.

First, nonspendable fund balances are determined. Then, restricted fund
balances for the nongeneral funds are classified as restricted fund balance.

It is possible for the nongeneral funds to have negative unassigned fund balance |
when nonspendable amounts plus the restricted fund balances for specific purpose
amounts exceed the positive fund balance for the nongeneral fund.

MINIMUM FUND BALANCE

The District's school board policy states:

1.) The school district will strive to maintain-an unassigned general fund balance
of not less than five percent (5%) and not more than eight percent (8%) of the
budgeted expenditures for that fiscal year.

2.) The total fund balance, consisting of sevéral portions including committed,
assigned and unassigned, may exceed eight percent {8%).

3) If the unassigned portion of the fund balance falls below the threshold of five
percent (5%), the board will pursue variations of increasing revenues and
decreasing expenditures or a combination of both until five percent (5%) is
attained. If the assigned and unassigned portions of the fund balance exceed

- eight percent (8%) of budgeted expenditures, the Board may utilize a portion
of the fund balance by appropriating excess funds for nonrecurring
expenditures only. '
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 13 - GASB STATEMENT NO. 54 - continued

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016
Total
Capital Gowernmental
General Projects Funds
EQUITY ‘
Nonspendable $ 0 3% 0% 0
Restricted _ 0 1,491,548 1,491,648
Committed ' .300,000. 0 300,000
Assigned 0 0 0
Unassigned 8,208,726 0 8,208,726
TOTAL FUND BALANCE $ 8,508,726 $ 1,491,548 § 10,000,274

NOTE 14 - RELATED ORGANIZATIONS:

Not included in the School's District financial statements are any Parent-Teacher
Associations _(PTA), Parent-Teacher Organizations {PTO) and athletic and band
booster clubs. . These agencies provide services to students and employees of
the School District, but are separate legal entities having sufficient autonomy in
the managément of their own affairs to distinguish them as separate from the
administrative organization of the School District. The School District does not
account for these entities as component units or joint ventures; it does not
maintain an ongoing financial interest or have responsibility for these entities.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 15—~ PENSION:
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PENSIONS

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred infiows of resources related to pensions, and pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public School
Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS) and additions to/deductions from
PSERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by PSERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds
‘of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms investments are reported at fair value.

General Information about the Pension Plén

PLAN DESCRIPTION

PSERS is a governmental cost-sharing,” muiti-employer defined benefit pension
plan that provides retirement benefits to public school employees of the
. Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The members eligible to participate in the
System include all full-time public schoo! employees, part-time hourly public
schoo! employees who render at least 500 hours of service in the school year,
and part-time per diem public school employees who render at least 80 days of
service in the school year in any of the reporting entities in Pennsylvania.
' PSERS issues a publicly available financial report than can be obtained at
www.psers. state.pa.us. -
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 15 - PENS]ON - continued
BENEFITS PRQVIDED .

PSERS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Members are
eligible for monthly retirement benefits upon reaching (a) age 62 with at least 1
year of credited service; (b) age 60 with 30 or more years of credited service; or
(c) 35 or more years of service regardless of age. Act 120 of 2010 (Act 120)
preserves the benefits of existing members and introduced benefit reductions for
individuals who become new members on or after July 1,2011.  Act 120 created
two new membership classes, Membership Class T-E (Class T-3) and
Membership Class T-F (Class T-F). To qualify for normal retirement, Class T-E
and Class T-F members must work until age 65 with a minimum of 3 years of
service or attain a total combination of age and service that is equal to or greater
than 92 with a minimum of 35 years of service. Benefits are generally equal to
2% ‘or 2.5%, depending upon membership class, of the member's final average
salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied by the number of years of credited
service. For members whose membership started prior to July 1, 2011, after
completion of five years of service, a member's right to the defined benefits is
vested and early retirement benefits may be elected. For Class T-E and Class .
" T-F members, the right to benefits is vested after ten years of service.

Participants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of five
years of credited service. Such benefits are generally equal to 2% or 2.5%,
depending upon membership class, of the member's final average salary (as
defined in the Code) multiplied by the number of years of credited service, but
not less than one-third of such salary nor greater than the benefit the member
would have had at normal retirement age. Members over normal retirement age
may apply for disability benefits. :

Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has
reached age 62 with at least one year of credited service (age 65 with at least
three years of credited service for Class T-E and Class .T-F members) or who
has at least five years of credited service (ten years for Class T-E and Class T-
F members). Such benefits are actuarially equivalent to the benefit that would
have been effective if the member had retired on the day before death.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 15 — PENSION — continued
CONTRIBUTIONS

Member Contributions: _
Active members who joined the System prior to July 22, 1983, contribute at
5.25% (Membership Class T-C or at 6.50% (Membership Class T-D) of the

member's qualifying compensation.

Members who joined the System on or after July 22, 1983, and who were active
or inactive as of July 1, 2001, contribute at 6.25% (Membership Class T-C) or at
7.50% (Membership Class T-D) of the member’s qualifying compensation.

Members who joined the System after June 30, 2001 and before July 1, 2011,
contribute at 7.50% (automatic Membership Class T-D). For all new hires and
for members who elected Class T-D membership, the higher contribution rates
began with service rendered on or after January 1, 2002.

Members who joined the System after June 30, 2011, automatically contributed
at the Membership Class T-E rate of 7.50% (base rate) of the member's
qualifying compensation. All new hires after June 30, 2011, who elected Class
T-F membership, contribute at 10.30% (base rate) of the member’s qualifying
compensation. Membership Class T-E and Class T-F are affected by a “shared
risk” provision in Act 120 of 2010 that in future fiscal years could cause the
Membership Class T-E contribution rate to fluctuate between 7.50% and 9.50%
and Membership Class T-F contribution rate to fluctuate between 10.30% and

12.30%.
Employer Contributions:

The school district's contractually required contribution rate for fiscal year ended
June 30, 2016 was 25.00% of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an
amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance
the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional

amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the pension
plan from the District were $2,343,872. for the year ended June 30, 2016.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 15 - PENSION - continued

PENSION LIABILITIES, PENSION EXPENSE, AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOQURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED
TO PENSIONS -

At June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability of $32,097,000. for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by rolling forward the System'’s total
pension liability as of June 30, 2014 to June 30, 2015. The District's proportion
of the net pension liability was calculated utilizing the employer's one-year
reported covered payroll as it relates to the total one-year reported covered
payroll. . At June 30, 2015, the District proportion was .00741%, which was a
increase of .0035 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014,

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized pension expense of
$1,789,350. At June 30, 2016, the District reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
_ Resources
Difference between employer contributions and
proportionate share of total contributions $ 1,416,000

$1,416,000. reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resuiting from District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as an addition of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,
2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related pensions will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:
' Year Ended
June 30,

2016 $ 252,000 -
2017 : 252,000
2018 252,000
2019 660,000
2020 0

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 1,416,000
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 15 — PENSION - continued

PENSION LIABILITIES, PENSION EXPENSE, AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED
TO PENSIONS - continued

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

Total pension liability as of June 30, 2015 was determined by rolling forward the
System'’s total pension liability as of the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation to June
30, 2014 using the following actuarlal assumptlons applied to all perlods
included in the measurement:

o Actuarial cost method — Entry Age Normal — level % of pay

s Investment return — 7.50%, includes inflation at 3.00%

¢ Salary increases — Effective average of 5.50%, which reflects an
allowance for inflation of 3.00%, real wage growth of 1%, and ment or
seniority increases of 1.50% _

o Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Annuitant
Tables (male and female) with age set back 3 years for both males and
females. For disable annuitants, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled
Tables (male and female) with age set back 7 years for males and 3 years

" forfemales.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were based on
the experience study that was performed for the five-year period ending June
30, 2010. The recommended assumption changes based this experience
study were adopted by the Board at its March 11, 2011 Board meeting and
were effectlve beglnnmg with the June 30, 2011 actuanal valuation.

The Iong—term -expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of retum by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 15 — PENSION - continued

PENSION LIABILITIES, PENSION EXPENSE, AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED

TO PENSIONS - continued :
ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS - continued

The pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is
established and may be amended by the Board. Plan assets are managed with
a long-term objective of achieving and maintaining a fully funded status for the

benefits provided through the pension.

Long-Tem

Target Expected Real

Asset Class : . Allocation Rate of Retumn

Public markets global equity 22.5% : 4.8%
Private markets (equity) - 15.0% 6.6%
Private real estate o 12.0% 4.5%
Global fixed income - 7.5% 2.4%
U.S. long treasuries B . 3.0% 1.4%
TIPS : 120% . 1.1%
High yieid bonds o 8.0% 3.3%
Cash _ ' 3.0% 0.7%
Absolute return - 10.0% 4.9%
Risk parity = . 10.0% 3.7%
MLPs/Infrastructure | ' 5.0% 5.2%
Commodities ‘ 8.0% 3.1%
Financing (LIBOR) oo -14.0% 1.1%

100%

The above was the Board's adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates
of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2015.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 15 — PENSION - continued

PENSION LIABILITIES, PENSION EXPENSE, AND DEFERREDOUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED
TO PENSIONS - continued '

DISCOUNT RATE

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate
and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually required
rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. '

SENSITIVITY OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET
'PENSION LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE DISCOUNT RATE

The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate
of 7.50%, as well as what the net position liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.50%) or one
percentage point higher (8.50%) than the current rate: -

Current
1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate - Increase
‘ 6.50% . 7.50% A . 8.50%
District's proportionate share of ' o
_the net pension liability $ 39,662,000 $ 32,097,000 $ 25,822,000
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1.

Auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of Pine
Grove Area School District. '

One significant deficiency disclosed during the audit of the financial statements is
reported in the report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting
based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards. This significant deficiency was also considered a material
weakness.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Pine Grove
Area School District, which would be required to be reported in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit. However, one (1)
immaterial instance of noncompliance was noted and is reported as we believe it
warrants attention of those charged with governance.

No significant deficiencies conditions relating to the audit of the major federal award
programs is reported in the Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to
Each Major Program and internal Control Over Compliance required by the Uniform
Guidance.

The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Pine
Grove Area School District expresses an unqualified opinion.

There were no audit findings relafive to the major federal programs for the Pine
Grove Area School District that are to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section

200.516(a).

The program tested as a major program included:

_ Program CFDA#
~ NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM 10.553

NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM 10.555

The threshold for distinguishing types A and B Programs was $750,000.

Pine Grove Area School District was determined not to be a low-risk auditee.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT-
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY/MATERIAL WEAKNESS
2016-01 Lack of Oversight and Monitoring of Financial Information |

Condition: Consistent management wasn’t present at the district to provide
- . proper oversight and to monitor the financial information.

Criteria: The District should have proper financial oversight and approval of all
financial information. Appropriate posting of financial activity should be
approved by someone with financial authority. Misposting within accounts
~and access to the financial general ledger should be reviewed on a timely

basis.

Cause: There was a lack of top management in the 2015/2016 fiscal year.
The District didn't have a Superintendent or a full time Business Manager for
part of the year.

Effect: Because the district was lacking top management, there was a lack of
oversight and monitoring of financial information.

'~ Recommendation: We immediately recommended that the District evaluate
employees’ access {o the General Ledger. We also recommend the Cafeteria -
Student Account balance be checked on a weekly or monthly basis to verify
correctness of the accounts. Also, we recommend the Payroll Bank Account
be reconciled on a monthly basis and tied to the General Ledger.

Views of Responsible Offi mals and Planned Corrective Actions:. The Pine
‘Grove Area School District agrees with the finding.” New management is
taking corrective action to ensure oversight and proper monltormg of financial

- mfon'natlon
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT - CONTINUED

VIOLATION OF LAWS AND REGULATlOVNS
2016-02 Failure to File Singlé Audit Report by the Due Date

Condition: The Single Audit wasnt filed with Federal Audit Clearinghouse by
the due date.

Criteria: Federal Uniform Guidance requires District's that receive over
$750,000 of federal monies to a single audit. The Single Audit filing due date
is nine months after year end.

Cause: We noted the Dlstrlct received over $750,000 of federal monles and did
not meet the 3/31/17 filing due date.

Effect: The lack of filing.on a timely basis caused the District to not be in
compliance the Federal Uniform Guidance Requirements :

Recommendatlon ‘We recommend that the District fi Ie the Single Aud|t to the -
Federal Audit Clearinghouse by the due date.

Views of Responsible Off‘ cials and Planned Corrective Actions: The Pine
Grove Area School District agrees with the finding and will ensure that future
Single Audlts are filed by the due date.

70



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT - CONTINUED

VIOLATION OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS — CONTINUED
2016-03 Failure to File Annual Financial Report by the Due Date

Condition: The District didn’t file the annual financial report to the State
Department of Education by the due date.

Criteria: The State Department of Education requires Districts to fi Ie an annual
fnanmal report by 10/31/16.

Cause: We noted the District didn’t file the annual financial report untit after the
due date.

Effect: The lack of filing on a timely basis caused the district to not be in
compliance with the Federal Uniform Guidance Requirements. In addition,
the Superintendent’s [icense can be suspended and penalties incurred.

Recommendation: We recommend that the Dlstrlct file their annual financial
report by the due date.

Views -of Responsible Officials and Planned Cor_rective‘Actions: The Pine.
Grove Area School District agrees with the finding and will ensure that the
annual financial report is timely filed.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting.

NOTE 2 - COMMODITIES:

The beginning and ending deferred income figures listed represent the beginning
and ending commodities inventories in the Cafeteria Fund. These commodities
are received through the State from the U.S. Department of Agriculture. The
commodities are valued at amounts assigned to the various items by the U.S.
Department of Agriculture when the commodities are offered.
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PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

June 30, June 30, June 30,
2015 2014 2013
DISTRICT'S PROPORTION OF THE NET PENSION ’

LIABILITY (ASSET) . 0.0741% 0.0706% 0.0689%
DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET _

PENSION LIABILITY {ASSET) % 32,097,000 $ 27,944,000 $ 28,205,000
DISTRICT'S COVERED-EMPLOYEE PAYROLL ‘ $ 95632929 § 9,011,116 $ 8,841,282
DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET

PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) AS A PERCENTAGE

OF ITS COVERED-EMPLOYEE PAYROLL ' 336.70% 310.10% 319.01%
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION AS A PERCENTAGE :

OF THE TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY ‘ . 54.36% 52.24% 54.49%

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten years of information can
be compiled, information is presented for as many years as is available. ' ' :

‘ See notes to financial statements
which are an integral part of this statement.
74



PINE GROVE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

June 30, June 30, June 30,
2015 2014 2013

DISTRICT'S PROPORTION OF THE NET PENSION

LIABILITY (ASSET) 0.0741% 0.0706% 0.0689%
DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET

PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) $§ 32097000 3 27,944,000 $ 28,205,000
DISTRICT'S COVERED-EMPLOYEE PAYROLL $ 9532929 % 5,011,116 $ 8,841,282
DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET

PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) AS A PERCENTAGE
- OF ITS COVERED-EMPLOYEE PAYROLL 336.70% 310.10% 319.01%
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION AS' A PERCENTAGE ,

OF THE TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY 54.36%  52.24% 54,49%

Uitimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten years of information can
be compiled, informatlon is presented for as many years as is available..

See notes to financial statements
whlch are an integral part of this statement.
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